
 

 

GLENN COUNTY 

WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
Glenn County Department of Agriculture 

720 North Colusa St., Willows, CA 95988 

Phone: 530.934.6501   FAX: 530.934.6503 

Email:  wateradv@countyofglenn.net  

Website: http://www.glenncountywater.org/ 

 

AGENDA 

MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

TIME:    1:30 P.M.  

PLACE:   Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District 

    344 East Laurel Street 

    Willows, CA  95988 

 
I. INTRODUCTIONS: 
 

Water Advisory Committee Members: 

David Alves   Central River Irrigation Districts 

Terry Bressler   East County Reclamation and Irrigation Districts 

Ted Trimble   East County Reclamation and Irrigation Districts 

John Amaro   Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District 

Larry Domenighini  Glenn County Farm Bureau 

Ken Sullivan   Orland Unit Water Users Association 

Bruce Roundy    Resource Conservation District 

Mike Vereschagin  Tehama Colusa Canal Authority Districts 

Mike Alves   Tehama Colusa Canal Authority Districts 

Mark Lohse   At-Large Private Pumpers (Agricultural/Municipal/Industrial) 

Rob Vlach   At-Large Private Pumpers (Agricultural/Municipal/Industrial) 

Darin Titus   At-Large Private Pumpers (Agricultural/Municipal/Industrial) 

Del Reimers   At-Large Private Pumpers (Agricultural/Municipal/Industrial) 

 

 

Technical Advisory Committee Members: 

Lance Boyd At-Large, South Area 

Erin Smith Department of Water Resources 

Allan Fulton UC Cooperative Extension 

Matt Gomes Glenn County Planning and Public Works     

Kevin Backus   Glenn County Environmental Health 

Ben Pennock At-Large, Central Area 

Marcie Skelton Glenn County Department of Agriculture 

Anjanette Shadley  At-Large, East Area 

John Brooks   At-Large, North Area 

Leigh McDaniel  Board of Supervisors (ex-officio) 

 

 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

A. Consider approval of the Minutes from the meeting of May 10, 2015. (POSSIBLE ACTION) 

B. Consider approval of the Minutes from the meeting of May 24, 2016. (POSSIBLE ACTION) 

mailto:wateradv@countyofglenn.net
http://www.glenncountywater.org/


 

 

 

III. AGENDA ITEMS: 

 

A. Public Comment: 

Any person wanting to address the Water Advisory Committee on any item NOT ON 

TODAY’S AGENDA may do so at this time.  Please limit your comments to three (3) 

minutes.  The Water Advisory Committee will not be making decisions or determinations on 

items brought up during Public Comment.  

 

B. Discussion and/or Action Items: 

 

1. Letter to Board of Supervisors-At the May 24, 2016 meeting, the WAC directed the TAC to 

draft a letter to the Board of Supervisors for WAC consideration using the following statement 

as a guideline: The WAC cannot recommend that the well moratorium be continued based on 

lack of sound data/science and further studies are needed to be done to gather data by a third 

party consultant and funding is needed to complete these studies. 

a) Provide comment and consider approving letter (POSSIBLE ACTION) 

2. BMO Compliance for 2016 (POSSIBLE ACTION) 

a) Provide feedback and consider approval of TAC recommendations: 

1.  Consider and provide feedback to the TAC regarding the creation of a clearly 

definable line between conflicting “No Stage Alert” wells and “Stage 3” wells 

in the northwest area of the County. 

2.  Consider and provide feedback to the TAC regarding the “3 mile radius 

surrounding Stage 3 wells” options. 

3.  Consider monthly monitoring for wells within the Stage 3 areas. 

b) Consider Potential Stage Alert Actions Outline 

c) Consider options for BMO compliance to forward to the Board of Supervisors 

3. Well Permit application process—Consider updated draft Well Permit application 

(POSSIBLE ACTION) 

4. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (DISCUSSION) 

a) DWR facilitation support services 

b) Counties with Stressed Basins Grant 

c) Roundtable discussion 

5. Reports 

a) Education/Outreach Committee (DISCUSSION) 

b) Legislation Committee (DISCUSSION) 



 

 

c) BMO Policy Ad hoc committee (DISCUSSION) 

d) TAC (DISCUSSION) 

6. Other Topics of Interest 

 

C. Communications:  

 

D. Member Reports: 

At this time WAC members are encouraged to discuss upcoming or ongoing                                                    

activities that may be of interest to the committee. 

 

IV. NEXT MEETINGS: 

 

The next WAC meeting will be tentatively scheduled at this meeting. 

  
The next TAC meeting is tentatively scheduled for late June. 

 

V. ADJOURN: 

 

 

Any documents related to agenda items that are made available to the Water Advisory Committee before 

the meeting shall be available for review during regular business hours at 720 North Colusa Street, 

Willows, California, 95988. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance or accommodations 

to participate in this meeting, please contact Lisa Hunter at the Glenn County Department of Agriculture 

at 530-934-6501. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Glenn County Water 

Advisory Committee to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. (28 CFR 

35.101-35.164 ADA Title II.) 



Glenn County WAC 

 1 

                                                                          
GLENN COUNTY 

WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Glenn County Department of Agriculture 

720 North Colusa St., P.O. Box 351, Willows, CA 95988 

Phone: (530) 934-6501 Fax: (530) 934-6503  

E-mail: wateradv@countyofglenn.net Web Page: www.glenncountywater.org 

 
MINUTES 

 
Meeting Date:     Tuesday, May 10, 2016  

           

Time:  1:30 pm    

 

Place:  Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District 

  344 East Laurel Street 

  Willows, CA 95988  

  

Water Advisory Committee Members Present: Others in Attendance: 

Rob Vlach Private Pumper Lisa Hunter Glenn Co. Ag Dept. 

Bruce Roundy Resource Conservation District Bill Ehorn DWR 

David Alves Central River Irrigation Districts Pat Vellines DWR 

Larry Domenighini Glenn County Farm Bureau Jon Mulder DWR 

Mike Alves TC Canal Authority Districts Paddy Turnbull Capay Landowner Association 

Mike Vereschagin TC Canal Authority Districts Chip Meriam Glenn Co. Assessor’s Office 

John Amaro GCID Zac Dickens GCID 

  Sharron Ellis  

Water Advisory Committee Members Absent: Dan Gamon   
Terry Bressler East County Rec & Irr Districts Marcie Skelton Glenn Co. Ag Commissioner 

Ted Trimble Western Canal Water District Matt Gomes Glenn Co. PPW 

Ken Sullivan Orland Water Users Association Carol Perkins  

Mark Lohse          Private Pumper George Pendell Stony Creek 

Darin Titus Private Pumper   

Del Reimers Private Pumper   

    

Technical Advisory Committee Members Present:    
Ben Pennock At-Large, Central Area   

Lance Boyd At-Large, South Area   

John Brooks At-Large, North Area   

Allan Fulton UC Cooperative Extension   

Anjanette Shadley (1:58) At-Large, East Area   

    

 

       

I. INTRODUCTIONS:   

Those in attendance are shown above.  

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

The meeting minutes from December 8, 2015 were approved as presented 5-0 with Mike Vereschagin and 

John Amaro abstaining. 

III. AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. Public Comment: 

None 

mailto:wateradv@countyofglenn.net
http://www.glenncountywater.org/


Glenn County WAC 

 2 

B. Discussion and/or Action Items: 

1. Reports 

a) Education/Outreach Committee—The committee has not met since the last WAC 

meeting and has nothing to report. 

b) Legislation Committee—The committee has not met since the last WAC meeting 

and has nothing to report. 

c) TAC—John Brooks addressed the committee.  Lisa Hunter reported the TAC held a 

joint special meeting with the Board of Supervisors on March 15, 2016 which will be 

discussed under Item 5.  The WAC chairman represented the WAC at this meeting.  

The Planning and Public Works and Department of Agriculture TAC representatives 

will be considered at the May 17 Board meeting.  

2. DWR update 

Pat Vellines provided the Spring Groundwater Conditions presentation.  The presentation 

reviewed water year and presentation indexes, groundwater elevation change maps, 

hydrographs, recharge plots, as well as future SGMA maps and available resources.   

The water year index indicates that the 2015 year was a critical year.  The current 8-station 

index notes that as of May 9, 2016, the Northern Sierra Precipitation is at 120% of normal 

for this date.   

Groundwater elevation change maps were reviewed for average wells (100-450 feet below 

ground surface), shallow wells (less than 200 feet), and deep wells (greater than 600 feet).               

The presentation showed average and deep wells change maps comparing Spring 2015 to 

the Spring 2016, Spring 2011 to Spring 2016, and Spring 2004 to Spring 2016.  Shallow 

wells change map compared Spring 2016 to Spring 2015. 

Ms. Vellines then presented hydrographs for several wells throughout the County.  

Recharge plots showing hydrographs, water year type, and daily precipitation were also 

introduced.  An example of future mapping was shown.  The map indicated number of 

wells per section and the depths of well included in the monitoring grid.   

3. Spring 2016 BMO Report 

Lisa Hunter reviewed the Spring 2016 groundwater level measurements for the current 

BMO wells.  A summary spreadsheet and map were distributed.   

4. BMO revision process 

Larry Domenighini provided an update on the activities of the BMO Policy Ad Hoc 

Committee.  Mr. Domenighini reviewed the committee was established in December 2015 

to develop policy options for WAC consideration.  The committee has met five times.  The 

meeting held January 8 reviewed the BMO stages and response actions and the discussion 

was continued at the March 1 meeting.  The Board of Supervisors met with the TAC March 

15.  The next ad hoc committee meetings March 25 and April 27 continued reviewing 

policy options, but also shifted the direction of the conversations to meet the Board of 

Supervisors requests which will be discussed under Item 5.  The committee met earlier 

today (May 10) to recap progress with Supervisor McDaniel and further discussion.   

The committee has no formal request at this time, but is considering a recommendation for 

WAC consideration to provide to the Board of Supervisors using the current BMO 

methodology based on historic data and developing a Stage 3 response using an area 

defined by a three mile radius surrounding Stage 3 BMO wells.  A three mile radius would 

eliminate a coverage gap and create continuity in the stage alert areas.  The Board of 

Supervisors is considering ways to lift the moratorium on part, or all, of the County.  One 

thought would be to use this Stage 3 response area (“pink area”) to continue the 

moratorium and lift it in the others areas of the County.  There could also be a 

differentiation between ag and domestic wells by depth.  This could be considered adaptive 

management under the current ordinance.  There is also some thought to extend the Stage 3 



Glenn County WAC 

 3 

area to the west to the Bulletin 118 boundary.  The exact boundary recommendation still 

needs to be refined. 

A question was raised about the wells that are not in a stage alert, but fall within the three 

mile radius.  That is a question that still needs to be further developed in the refinement 

process.  Thoughts were also expressed that well conditions and well construction details 

are variable throughout the County.  It was stressed that these thoughts are preliminary and 

details are still being worked out.   

Lisa Hunter shared she will meet with the Supervisors ad hoc committee, Supervisors 

McDaniel and Viegas, to provide an update on this committee’s progress and to prepare for 

the Board meeting next week.  Discussion ensued regarding the well permit moratorium, 

depth distinctions, and groundwater conditions.      

A motion was made by Mike Alves to send a letter to the Board of Supervisors 

recommending they lift the well permitting moratorium county-wide.  The motion was 

seconded by David Alves.  Concerns were raised that this action would be a Brown Act 

violation. The motion passed 4-3 by the following roll call vote: 

David Alves: Yes 

John Amaro: Yes 

Larry Domenighini: No 

Bruce Roundy: No 

Mike Vereschagin: Yes 

Mike Alves: Yes 

Rob Vlach: No 

It was requested that staff follow-up with County Counsel to determine if this action meets 

the Brown Act requirements. 

5. Report on Board of Supervisor Activities 

Lisa Hunter provided an update regarding Board of Supervisors activities in the past several 

months discussing water issues.  Only two meetings since early December have not 

included water items.  Discussions have included TAC resignation/appointment, Sites JPA, 

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, and the well permit moratorium.  Handouts 

included a packet that was provided to the Board last week as well as Board minute orders 

from some of the pertinent Board meetings.   

Many of the discussion points were already covered previously under Item 4.  Discussion 

ensued regarding well depth restrictions.  There was also a question as to whether to WAC 

has received any abnormal groundwater level reports.  Ms. Hunter confirmed that no 

reports have been received this year.   

It was requested to add David Alves to the committee, which was approved by the chair.   

6. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

Lisa Hunter provided an update on the DWR facilitation support services that the County 

applied for to try to help the eligible agencies have a platform to work through the 

Groundwater Sustainability Agency notification process and coordination.  A public 

meeting was held March 8.  The first working group meeting was held last month.  The 

purpose of the working group meetings are to focus on GSA governance emphasizing 

coordination between the eligible agencies in each of the three subbasins within the 

County.  Ms. Hunter encouraged all the members of the eligible agencies to participate in 

the process.  The second working group meeting is tentatively scheduled for May 24.  

The Counties with Stressed Basins grant application has been approved.  Ms. Hunter is 

working through the agreement process with DWR and getting the scope of work finalized.  

The grant is $250,000 and focuses on data management and a hydrogeologic conceptual 

model for the County.  



Glenn County WAC 

 4 

Dan Gamon shared that the Groundwater Resources Association is holding a SGMA event 

June 8-9 in Sacramento and encouraged anyone that may be interested to attend.  Mike 

Alves spoke to the importance of data collection and that decisions are supported by the 

data. 

7. Other Topics of Interest 

None. 

C. Communications: 

A California Water Service Notice of Preparation letter was included in the agenda packet. 

D. Member Reports: 

None. 

IV. NEXT MEETINGS: 

The next WAC meeting is tentatively scheduled for June 14 and/or July 12, 2016. 

The next TAC meeting will be scheduled for late May. 

V. ADJOURN: 

The meeting was adjourned at 3:08 p.m. 

 



Glenn County WAC 

 1 

                                                                          
GLENN COUNTY 

WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Glenn County Department of Agriculture 

720 North Colusa St., P.O. Box 351, Willows, CA 95988 

Phone: (530) 934-6501 Fax: (530) 934-6503  

E-mail: wateradv@countyofglenn.net Web Page: www.glenncountywater.org 

 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Date:     Tuesday, May 24, 2016  

           

Time:  1:30 pm    

 

Place:  Glenn County Department of Agriculture 

  720 North Colusa Street 

  Willows, CA 95988  

  

Water Advisory Committee Members Present: Others in Attendance: 

Rob Vlach Private Pumper Lisa Hunter Glenn Co. Ag Dept. 

Bruce Roundy Resource Conservation District Lester Messina  

David Alves Central River Irrigation Districts Dave Ceppos  

Larry Domenighini Glenn County Farm Bureau Paddy Turnbull  

Mike Alves TC Canal Authority Districts Rick Massa  

Mike Vereschagin TC Canal Authority Districts Thad Bettner  

Ted Trimble Western Canal Water District George Pendell  

Mark Lohse          Private Pumper   

John Amaro GCID   

    

Water Advisory Committee Members Absent:    
Terry Bressler East County Rec & Irr Districts   

Del Reimers Private Pumper   

Ken Sullivan Orland Water Users Association   

Darin Titus Private Pumper   

    

Technical Advisory Committee Members Present:    
Matt Gomes Glenn County P&PWA   

Lance Boyd At-Large, South Area   

Anjanette Shadley  At-Large, East Area   

    

 

       

I. INTRODUCTIONS:   

Those in attendance are shown above.  

II. AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. Public Comment: 

None 

B. Discussion and/or Action Items: 

1. Correspondence to Board of Supervisors 

a) Rescind action taken at the May 10, 2016 meeting to send a letter to the Board of 

Supervisors recommending county-wide removal of the well permit 

moratorium. —On a motion by Mike Vereschagin and a 2
nd

 by Bruce Roundy, the 

mailto:wateradv@countyofglenn.net
http://www.glenncountywater.org/


Glenn County WAC 

 2 

action taken at the May 10, 2016 meeting to send a letter to the Board of Supervisors 

recommending county-wide removal of the well permit moratorium was rescinded by 

a unanimous vote.   

b) Consider recommendation to Board of Supervisors regarding the well permit 

moratorium set to expire August 3, 2016 at 11:59 PM.—A discussion ensued 

which included the following points: 

 Some feel the moratorium is illegal and goes beyond state law. 

 A county-wide water budget would be helpful.  Some agencies are willing to 

help fund the project.  Are areas in balance, out of balance, and by how 

much?  The Colusa County water budget project was highlighted as an 

example. 

 Data, not politics or emotion should guide decisions. 

 Groundwater is variable throughout the County. 

 Funding for a consultant is necessary. 

 Reducing the area of the moratorium--areas not in a stage 3 alert. 

 Realistic timeframe to finish policy work. 

 Many felt the fear of multiple permits being pulled if the moratorium was 

lifted is unrealistic.  

 A letter could outline the legal concerns, science aspects, and concerns with 

the current BMO process.  A letter could contain a scope of work necessary 

to achieve the science the Board is looking for. 

A motion was made by Mike Vereshagin, 2
nd

 by John Amaro to direct the TAC to 

work with staff to draft a letter to the Board of Supervisors for WAC consideration 

using the following statement as a guideline prior to the next WAC meeting on June 

14: 

The WAC cannot recommend that the well moratorium be continued based on lack of 

sound data/science and further studies are needed to be done to gather data by a 

third party consultant and funding is needed to complete these studies. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

III. NEXT MEETINGS: 

The next WAC meeting is tentatively scheduled for June 14, 2016. 

The next TAC meeting will be scheduled May 26, 2016. 

IV. ADJOURN: 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:41 p.m. 

 



  

 

 
 720 North Colusa Street, P. O. Box 351, Willows, CA  95988 

 Phone:  530-934-6501  Fax: 530-934-6503 

 wateradv@countyofglenn.netEmail:   

 http://www.glenncountywater.org/Web page:  

 

July 12, 2016 

Dear Board Members: 

The WAC has made significant progress regarding Basin Management Objective (BMO) revisions and 

recommendations for updating the well permitting process. The WAC is requesting funding to complete 

additional data analysis.   

Groundwater ordinance 1237, adopted August 7, 2012,  included  the Preliminary Plan for Groundwater 

Management(Preliminary Plan), developed by the consulting firm Wood Rodgers with guidance from the 

WAC and the County.  Several tasks included in the Preliminary Plan have been completed, but several tasks 

remain. Additional resources are needed to complete the analysis requested by the Board.  Please see the 

attached report and summary. 

The WAC also developed a Report on Declining Groundwater Levels in Western Glenn County and an Action 

List that was approved by the Board of Supervisors in May 2014.  Progress has been made toward completing 

these tasks, but ultimately, many of the items outlined require additional funds to complete.  The report and 

Action List are attached. 

A water budget is fundamental in providing useful recommendations regarding well permitting and BMO 

revisions.  Furthermore, a detailed water budget is also essential in moving the Sustainable Groundwater 

Management Act discussions forward, including the formation of Groundwater Sustainability Agencies and 

Plans.  There is an opportunity to cost-share with other agencies; therefore we are requesting the County 

participate in the funding a third-party consultant to work on this project.  

The items of most critical need are: 

 County-wide water budget (water balance)—approximately $130,000 

 Funding for coordination and outreach programs (Enter $ amount) 

We would also encourage the Board of Supervisors to add resources to the County’s water program to 

further assist in these efforts.  

We look forward to hearing from you.   

Sincerely, 

 

 

Rob Vlach 

WAC Chairman 

mailto:wateradv@countyofglenn.net
http://www.glenncountywater.org/


ATTACHMENT—Summary and Status of Tasks  

 Preliminary Plan for Groundwater and Coordinated Water Management (2003, incorporated 

into Ordinance 1237 in August 2012) 

 Formulate countywide water management goals 

 Perform water needs analysis (initially completed in 2007, due for an update) 

 Prepare water delivery and distribution infrastructure map (initially completed in 2007) 

 Determine groundwater utilization opportunities and constraints 

 Complete comprehensive groundwater monitoring program (initially completed in 2007, 

currently updating BMO revisions) 

 Formulate potential projects (ongoing) 

 (Formulate) evaluate water transfer guidelines (completed 2012, incorporated into Ord. 

1237) 

 Formulate drought preparedness plan 

 Formulate public information and education program (ongoing) 

 Prepare Groundwater and Coordinated Water Management Plan 

 

 Report on Groundwater Level Declines in Western Glenn County (May 2014) 

 Groundwater/Surface Water Modeling and Water Budget (Prop 1 grant beginning July 

2016 will start this process) 

 Cost study analysis  

 Recharge activities 

 Surface water use 

 Coordination, Outreach, and Education (ongoing) 

 Mapping (initial mapping completed; this task is ongoing) 

 Basin Management Objectives (this task is ongoing) 

 County Governance Options (Portions of this task have been 

reviewed/discussed/implemented.  This task required further engagement.) 



1 of 9 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Glenn County Water Advisory Committee 
 
FROM: Francis E. Borcalli, P.E. 
 
DATE: November 13, 2003 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Plan for Groundwater and Coordinated Water Management – 

Discussion Document 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Glenn County Water Advisory Committee (WAC) retained the services of Wood Rodgers, 
Inc. in February 2003, to assist in facilitating a planning process to document and preserve what 
has been accomplished and provide a direction for the future of the WAC. 
 
In carrying out this assignment, Wood Rodgers interviewed representatives of water districts, 
agricultural support entities, and agriculturists; reviewed documents describing completed as well 
as relevant work in progress, city/county general plans, and county codes and ordinances.  
Additionally, Wood Rodgers attended meetings of the WAC and Technical Advisory Committee 
(TAC). 
 
Based upon information assimilated, Wood Rodgers prepared this Memorandum to initiate 
discussion aimed at facilitating the management of water resources “available” to Glenn County.  
Use of the term “available” is purposeful in that Glenn County, not necessarily as a jurisdiction 
but as a community, has the innate responsibility of being stewards of those resources for the 
community of Glenn County as well as the region and State as a whole. 
 
By virtue of the geographic and hydrologic setting of Glenn County and the foresight and actions 
of people in years past, Glenn County is in an enviable position in relation to many other areas of 
the State.  More importantly, Glenn County has, in recent years, continued to demonstrate 
foresight by virtue of measures implemented to safeguard its groundwater resources.  Measures 
that are being implemented in Glenn County are being used to set standards statewide by virtue of 
being incorporated into legislation of statewide significance. 
 
The efforts of Glenn County relative to formulating and codifying measures to safeguard its 
groundwater resources and the progress made in implementing stipulated monitoring programs are 
commendable.  This effort to chart the “next” step to facilitate improved management of the 
available water resources is commendable as well. 
 



2 of 9 

BACKGROUND 
 
Glenn County is clearly an agricultural community with nearly 30 percent of its 850,000 acres in 
agriculture and one percent devoted to urban uses (Table 1).  Over the 10-year period from 1988 to 
1998, land devoted to agricultural use decreased from 283,517 acres to 263,503 acres, or seven 
percent, while land devoted to urban use increased from 6,114 aces to 11,314 acres, or 85 percent.  
Virtually all land suitable for irrigated agriculture is developed, thus, increases in water use for 
agriculture would be attributed to changes in crop mix and/or intensity of farming or improved 
reliability in supply. 
 
The land within the incorporated cities of Orland and Willows is approximately 3,400 acres 
although the land within the planning area or Sphere of Influence of the two cities is 
approximately 12,400 acres.  The latter represents approximately 4.7 percent of the land in 
agriculture in 1998.  The total county population in 2012 is projected at 47,000, which represents 
an increase of nearly 22,000 people above the 1993 population. 
 
In establishing the WAC and TAC; adopting Ordinance No. 1115; developing and adopting initial 
Basin Management Objectives (BMOs); and implementing programs to monitor groundwater 
levels, water quality, and land subsidence monitoring programs represents very significant 
accomplishments that separates Glenn County from most other counties.  Having “tested” the 
BMO process for addressing conflicts reinforces the utility of the process established for 
safeguarding groundwater resources. 
 
GOALS FOR WATER MANAGEMENT 
 
To identify the goals for water management in Glenn County, certain documents were reviewed to 
determine the extent to which the community is unified in this regard.  The respective documents 
and specified goals are presented below.  Where deemed appropriate, some commentary or 
comments are provided that relate to the purpose of this assignment. 
 

Basin Management Objective (BM0) for Groundwater Surface Elevations in 
Glenn County, California, August 21, 2001 
 
The vision set forth by the WAC in submitting the Basin Management Objectives to the 
Board of Supervisors for adoption, is “that sufficient and affordable water of good 
quality be available on a sustainable basis to meet the needs of agricultural, industrial, 
recreational, environmental, residential, and municipal users within the County, both 
now and in the future.” 
 
The intent of the vision is well meaning; however, at this time the water needs and 
affordability of the respective users are not known.  Absent some quantification of the 
needs and affordability, it is very difficult to formulate water resource projects and 
programs to fulfill the vision. 
 



3 of 9 

Policy Plan Glenn County General Plan Volume I, June 1993 
 
Goals and policies are set forth in the General Plan that relate to the subject of this 
Memorandum.  A relevant goal and policies were selected from the document and are 
presented below. 
 
Goal: 
 
NRG-2 Protection and management of local water resources. 
 
Policies: It shall be the policy of Glenn County to: 

  
NRP-22 Oppose the exportation of groundwater resources outside the county. 

 
NRP-23 Support legislation which will provide for a locally controlled Glenn 

County groundwater management district. 
 

NRP-24 Recognize the following local priorities when dealing with questions of 
ground and surface water use: 

 
 Highest (1) Household/Domestic 

(2) Agriculture 
(3) Industrial/Commercial 
(4) Wildlife/Conservation 

 
Lowest (5) Exportation 

 
NRP-25 Protect groundwater recharge areas in the county from overcovering and 

contamination by carefully regulating the type of development that occurs 
within these areas. 

 
Other policies and implementation strategies are presented in the General Plan, 
however, are not presented here. 

 
It is recognized these policies were developed in 1993, and that a great deal of work 
and effort were expended since then to better understand and manage water resources 
available to the Glenn County.  Nevertheless, these policies are not necessarily 
consistent with current management strategies. 

 



4 of 9 

Feasibility Report, OUWUA AND TCCA Regional Water Use Efficiency Project, 
January 2003 

 
The long-term management goals for the OUWUA and TCCA as stated in the 
feasibility report include the following: 

 
• Insure a long-term reliable water supply to the OUWUA, and improve conveyance 

system and on-farm water use efficiency by modernizing the existing open channel 
distribution system 

 
• Support the long-term Stony Creek environmental restoration and fishery resource 

management objectives of the various state and federal resource agencies 
 

• Provide supplemental water supply to the TCCA service area 
 

• Provide supplemental water supply and operating flexibility to support other 
beneficial water uses within the Sacramento Valley 

 
Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District Water Transfer Policy, February 16, 1995 
 
The Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District (GCID) adopted its water transfer policy in 
February 1995. The policy articulates a priority to allocate its water supplies.  
Summarized below is GCID’s policy to allocate water supplies available after meeting 
the needs within the District.  Water available in excess of the District’s needs would be 
marketed as follows: 
 
1. A portion of the available water to other agricultural areas within the Sacramento 

River watershed with consideration given to the buyers “ability to pay,” 
 
2. To environmental purposes. 

 
3. To urban water agencies north of the Delta. 

 
4. To agricultural or urban water users south of the Delta. 

 
5. To the USBR/DWR on a case-by-case basis with the same priority as south of the 

Delta water users. 
 
It is not essential that goals and policies of entities involved with water management be the same, 
however, it is important from the standpoint of the message delivered to people within and outside 
the county, that: 
 

• The goals and policies from a countywide perspective be consistent. 
 

• The goals and policies at the countywide level facilitate sound water management by 
local entities. 



5 of 9 

ORGANIZATION FOR WATER MANAGEMENT 
 
Existing organization for addressing water-related issues in Glenn County includes the WAC and 
TAC, the membership of which are both appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  The WAC and 
TAC have been instrumental in implementing groundwater monitoring programs to address 
groundwater levels, water quality, and land subsidence and in assessing compliance with the 
BMOs.  Additionally, meetings of the respective committees have provided a forum for discussing 
a variety of water-related matters.  More important, or at least equally important, to the work 
accomplished, is the strength of the organization, which comes from successfully dealing with 
contentious and controversial issues.  The WAC is comprised of 22 members, 17 of which 
represent specific geographic subareas, four individually representing the cities of Orland and 
Willows, the Resource Conservation District, the Glenn County Farm Bureau, and one ex-officio 
member from the Board of Supervisors.  The subareas and geographic locations are identified on 
Map 1.  The area of each subarea is presented on Table 2.  A further definition of each subarea in 
terms of land use for years 1993 and 1998 is presented on Table 3.  The TAC is a nine-person 
committee nominated by the WAC and appointed by the Board. 
 
Work of the WAC/TAC is at a threshold in that a milestone has been reached in terms of the initial 
focus of groundwater management being achieved.  This is not to say that the work is completed 
but rather, the program for groundwater monitoring, an important element of the BMOs, is being 
implemented. This will be an ongoing effort in terms of the monitoring network and the data 
compiled. 
 
The question being addressed at this time is, “What is the next step toward advancing the 
management of water resources available to Glenn County?”  In other words, what is the role of 
the WAC/TAC and what activities should be implemented to build on the good works completed 
to date.  Improved water management is accomplished one step at a time.  Each step should build 
on work completed from the previous step.  Clearly, each step will be followed by another, as the 
task of water management is never completed.  Instead, it becomes more refined with well-
directed effort over time.  An essential element of ongoing success is the unconditional 
cooperation and partnerships formed to implement well-conceived programs and projects.  
Accordingly, the roles and responsibilities of the involved parties need to be clearly defined. 
 
A specified purpose of the County in adopting the BMOs is to work cooperatively with interested 
local agencies to further develop and implement joint groundwater management practices.  To this 
end, to the extent efforts are directed to facilitate improved management of available water 
resources by local agencies or entities, the people of Glenn County will be well served. 
 
Management of available water resources by local agencies or entities can be improved with 
information that is more global in scope or countywide, readily accessible, and provides the 
foundation for monitoring conditions and identifying opportunities for improved water 
management and partnerships for implementing particular programs and projects. 
 
For purposes of advancing the management of water resources available within Glenn County, it is 
suggested that the role of the WAC be expanded to include the coordination of other water 
resources activities that are countywide.  Thus far the effort of the WAC has been directed 



6 of 9 

primarily at administering the BMOs.  The composition of the existing committees, although 
considered by some as not well balanced, does provide a good cross section of the water 
community of Glenn County.  Furthermore, the ability to work together to deal with contentious 
issues has been demonstrated. 
 
The water resource activities or tasks should be aimed at formulating a Glenn County 
Groundwater and Water Coordination Plan.  The activities undertaken that are of a countywide 
nature should in no way interfere with the day-to-day operations of local entities, long term 
planning, or management of resources.  On the other hand, the effective implementation of such 
activities should facilitate more effective planning, implementation, and management of local 
entities individually and/or jointly. 
 
To reflect a broader role, the WAC could be referred to as the Water Advisory and Coordination 
Committee or other name as may be deemed appropriate.  The duties related to the BMOs would 
not change. 
 
PROGRAM TO FACILITATE GROUNDWATER AND COORDINATED WATER 
MANAGEMENT 
 
Tasks have been identified as components of a program to facilitate the management of water 
resources by local entities within Glenn County.  The product from the respective tasks would 
provide information that can be used to facilitate improved water management and benefit Glenn 
County.  It is suggested implementing the tasks with oversight of the WAC in its expanded role as 
discussed above.  The respective tasks, together with a brief description, are presented below. 
 
A. Formulate Countywide Water Management Goals 
 

As noted previously, goals for water management at the county level are not consistent and 
in some sense contradict the goals and policies of local entities.  For the benefit of the 
community at large and entities responsible for water management, it would be beneficial to 
revisit this matter to develop water management goals that would serve to unify the 
governing and regulatory bodies and those responsible for water management. 

 
B. Perform Water Needs Analysis 
 

Having the water needs of Glenn County as a priority for water management is certainly 
endorsed by all parties.  A difficulty is that the water needs for Glenn County are not 
identified.  Addressing this priority in a responsible manner could be done if the water needs 
for the various water uses were quantified in terms of amount, location, timing, and quality.  
Addressing the water needs, or better stated, unmet water needs, dictates that water supplies 
also be quantified. 

 
C. Prepare Water Delivery and Distribution Infrastructure Map 

 
Having a map that displays all existing infrastructure for the delivery and distribution of 
irrigation water would be beneficial for identifying opportunities to interconnect or extend 



7 of 9 

facilities to exchange or transfer water within the county.  This information would be helpful 
to identify opportunities meeting water needs in particular areas, and/or providing service in 
the event of an emergency situation. 

 
D. Determine Groundwater Utilization Opportunities and Constraints 

 
BMOs have been set for various sub-areas in the county.  To a large extent the BMOs were 
established using historic groundwater level data.  The BMOs and the applied methodology 
provides safeguards for protecting the groundwater basin, however, it may also be limiting 
the opportunity for managing the available water resources.  A better understanding of the 
extent to which the groundwater basin can be utilized without causing adverse impacts could 
aid substantially in meeting the water needs of the county under normal or emergency 
conditions. 

 
Glenn County is fortunate to have a groundwater model that was prepared for the Orland-
Artois Water District, the Orland Unit Water Users’ Association, and Glenn-Colusa 
Irrigation District.  Water Resources & Information Management Engineering, Inc. 
(WRIME) developed the Stony Creek Fan Integrated Groundwater and Surface Water Model 
(SCFIGSM) in coordination with the California Department of Water Resources.  By virtue 
of having the model, Glenn County, again, sets itself apart from most other counties.  
Although the model was developed for the Stony Creek Fan Conjunctive Water Management 
Program, the model is a “public domain“ model and it is understood that the model is 
available for use by other entities in Glenn County. 

 
The SCFIGSM is a “tool“ that can be used to simulate groundwater flow, streamflow, 
reservoir operations, rainfall runoff processes, land use processes, unsaturated zone flow, and 
land subsidence.  The utility of the SCFIGSM , as stated in WRIME’s report, is that it can be 
used to: 
 
1. Re-examine the assumptions made during the development of the BMOs. 
 
2. Enhance the information background of an existing decision or a revised decision related 

to the Groundwater Management Ordinance or the BMOs. 
 

3. Identify sensitive areas where additional monitoring may be required to check 
compliance with the BMOs. 

 
4. Develop general response characteristics and/or sensitivity ranges among different 

physical and operational elements. 
 

5. Enhance the understanding of the groundwater system behaviors, characteristics, and 
constraints. 

 
The SCFIGSM can perform “what if” scenarios that can greatly improve the overall 
understanding of the groundwater basin and general response to hypothetical changes in land 
use and water management. 



8 of 9 

E. Complete Comprehensive Groundwater Monitoring Program 
 

Through the efforts of the WAC and TAC, Glenn County has initiated a sound groundwater 
monitoring program consistent with the BMOs that includes groundwater levels, 
groundwater quality, and land subsidence.  The program is not complete and will be 
improved and refined with time as additional information is obtained and the needs and 
understanding of the basin are better known.  This program should be completed to the 
extent existing data and information permits to expand and refine the program and network 
over time as funding permits.  The groundwater model discussed above could be useful in 
refining the program. 

 
F. Formulate Potential Projects 
 

It would be useful to conduct “brainstorming” sessions to identify, at a conceptual level, 
potential projects and programs that could help to improve water reliability, quality, or 
mitigate the impact of extended droughts.  Attention should be given to seeking multiple 
benefits such as reducing impacts from flooding/storm drainage, environmental 
enhancements, etc. 
 
The benefit of such an exercise would be twofold.  First, it would establish a potential list of 
projects that cold be considered for advanced study when funding opportunities are 
available.  Second, it would provide a broader understanding of the potential projects in 
which participants might consider being a partner in at a future time. 

 
G. Formulate Water Transfer Guidelines 
 

Glenn County, by virtue on its physical and hydrologic setting and foresight of its residents 
in the past, enjoys an enviable water supply situation in relation to many counties in 
California.  The fact that water transfers within and/or outside the county can be considered 
is a fortunate circumstance. 
 
As stewards of the water resources available to Glenn County the resource should be 
managed to meet the needs of Glenn County, the Sacramento Valley, and California, to the 
extent practicable.  Water law and guidelines or parameters for water use exist.  It would be 
helpful to the community to have guidelines documented that represent established water law 
and water use parameters that represent the basis for particular types of water transfers.  
Types of water transfers that should be considered include: 
 

• Surface water with groundwater substitution. 
• Surface water with fallowing. 
• Groundwater. 

 
To the extent water transfers are configured consistent with adopted guidelines, there should 
be no need for discussion of a mitigation fund or third party impacts.  Having water transfer 
guidelines in place can facilitate the management of water resources within the county. 

 



9 of 9 

H. Formulate Drought Preparedness Plan 
 

The results of tree-ring studies performed on behalf of DWR indicate the occurrence of dry 
periods of greater duration and severity than the recorded history much of the water planning 
is based upon.  It is not practical to develop or have water supplies available to cover severe 
events.  Nevertheless, such events should be anticipated and measures identified in advance 
to prepare a community for managing the resources for the well being of the community. 
 
The groundwater model provides an excellent tool by which “what if “ scenarios can be 
examined to identify the most sensitive areas from the standpoint of potential adverse 
impacts to the groundwater basin.  Measures and protocol for response in such events can be 
used to refine the BMOs. 

 
I. Formulate Public Information and Education Program 

 
The WAC, with an expanded role, could be very effective in disseminating water resource 
information on a regular basis and facilitating public involvement for projects in which local 
agencies are involved.  Utilizing the excellent relationship with the U.C. Extension Service 
and DWR could be very effective as a cooperative effort. 

 
J. Prepare Groundwater and Coordinated Water Management Plan 

 
Implementing the tasks described above could help to facilitate the management of water 
resources available to Glenn County. 

 
These activities lend themselves to being addressed at a countywide level and will support 
the work of local entities and facilitate management of supplies for which each is 
responsible.  Opportunities for partnerships to improve water management could emerge 
from the work as well. 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The information presented above is intended to provide a basis for discussion of items Wood 
Rodgers views as important to strengthen and build on the product of very significant efforts 
expended by numerous individuals in the county to date.  From Wood Rodgers’ standpoint, the 
work product from the program can facilitate improved management of water resources for the 
overall benefit of the county. 



Approved by WAC 5/6/14 
Adopted by Board of Supervisors 5/20/14 

Glenn County Water Advisory Committee-Ad hoc Committee 

Report on Groundwater Level Declines in  
Western Glenn County 

"It is the desire of the people of Glenn County that sufficient and affordable water of good quality be 

available on a sustainable basis to meet the needs of agricultural, industrial, recreational, 

environmental, residential and municipal users within the county, both now and in the future."—Goal 

of the Glenn County Water Advisory Committee 

The ad hoc committee was formed at the July 8, 2013 Water Advisory Committee (WAC)/Technical 

Advisory Committee (TAC) joint meeting.  The committee met July 18, 2013, November 7, 2013, January 

10, 2014, February 27, 2014, and April 17, 2014. The purpose of this committee is to: 

1. Research the declining groundwater levels observed on the west side of Glenn County. 

2. Develop potential solutions including stabilizing and/or reversing the downward groundwater 

level trend in that area. 

3. Develop a list of projects. 

4. Determine potential funding opportunities.  

5. Develop additional ideas to investigate. 

6. Make recommendations to the WAC. 

It is the intention that the committee will develop an “Action List” to present to the Water Advisory 

Committee.  The committee’s expectation is to develop potential solutions, actions, and additional ideas 

to investigate that will help maintain a reliable water source for the people in Glenn County (County).      

The committee has discussed many topics that have been broken down into eight general categories in 

relation to the groundwater levels in western Glenn County.  The general topics are as follows: 

1. Groundwater/Surface Water Modeling and Water Budget 

2. Cost Study Analysis 

3. Recharge Activities 

4. Surface Water Use 

5. Coordination, Outreach, and Education 

6. Mapping 

7. Basin Management Objectives 

8. County Governance Options 

Recommendations and work completed by the committee under these general topics are discussed 

below. 



  

2 

Modeling and Water Budget 
Use of groundwater and surface water modeling is suggested for Glenn County.  It would also be 

reasonable to include Tehama and/or Colusa Counties if funding is available due to the similarities in 

hydrology and location.  An end result of the modeling effort would be a county-wide water budget. 

It is this committee’s opinion that surface and groundwater modeling that is coupled with other types of 

field monitoring is one element of a cost-effective approach to managing water supplies in Glenn 

County. It is the recommendation of this committee that the WAC and TAC seek funding for this item.  

While funding is being sought, the committees should research and investigate the types of models 

available, the extent of field calibration that has already been completed, and the appropriateness of 

their application to Glenn County and the surrounding northern Sacramento Valley area.   A summary 

report should be encouraged.  In addition, the committees must determine the criteria to be used and 

what questions the model should seek to answer (e.g. best places for recharge, water flow, 

sustainability at current use).  The ultimate goal of modeling would be to establish a water budget in 

Glenn County in order to make more informed management decisions based upon good science.  This 

should be considered a foundational item. 

Cost Study Analysis 
A cost study analysis to determine the cost of groundwater use versus the cost of surface water use 

would help understand incentives and constraints to improving coordinated use of surface and 

groundwater resources.  This would entail total costs of groundwater use including fixed capital costs 

and variable operating costs.  Capital costs would include the cost of drilling, well construction, well 

development, power transmission costs, and costs for the pumping plant.  Variable operating costs 

would include energy costs giving consideration to Time of Use (TOU) rates for electric motors and 

alternative fuels for engines, maintenance, and filtration.  In a similar way, total costs of surface water 

will be evaluated to include operation, maintenance, wheeling charges, and water charges.  Additional 

costs of filtration and treatment so water is of suitable quality for use in drip and microsprinkler 

irrigation will be included. 

It is the recommendation of this committee to further improve the concept of this study and develop a 

plan to implement the study.  Funding options should also be evaluated.  Statewide specialists from 

University of California should be engaged in the development and execution of this study with Allan 

Fulton, TAC representative for the UC Cooperative Extension, being the lead for the TAC.  The cost study 

would be designed upfront with direction from the TAC so that it would produce a cost range 

recognizing that each area would be different based on a variety of inputs such as groundwater levels, 

desired pumping capacity, well and pumping plant design, etc.  A preliminary estimate of groundwater 

costs is $60-120 per acre-foot which would be confirmed and further refined from this study. 

Previous cost studies should also be researched in conjunction with this project such as the study used 

for the cost analysis presented in the Department of Water Resources, California Water Plan. 



  

3 

Recharge Activities 
The committee recommends continued investigation of potential recharge activities including in-lieu 

recharge, active recharge, and detention basins.  It is this committee’s opinion that active or in-lieu 

recharge with surface water is a critical piece of stabilizing groundwater levels and improving the overall 

water supply reliability in the area of concern.  If successful, it could lessen the need for some of the 

measures described in the “County Governance Options”.  

A summary report of previous local studies should be developed.  This report would include studies by 

the Colusa Basin Drainage District, the WAC’s Stony Creek Pulse Flow study, the Stony Creek Fan Project 

Recharge study that was done by GCID, OAWD, AND OUWUA, and others.  Areas summarized would 

include Wilson Creek, Walker Creek, gravel pits, ponding areas, and Stony Creek.  Funding opportunities 

for project implementation would be researched. 

New potential studies and sites should also be evaluated and funding researched.   This would also 

include incorporating the possible reoperation of the T-C project to potentially make more water 

available for recharge.  This would require coordination with water districts and water users in the areas 

being researched.  In addition, naturally occurring groundwater recharge areas in the County should be 

identified and steps taken to protect them from future threats. 

Surface Water Use 
 A fundamental objective is to use all available surface water supplies for beneficial uses within our area.  

By doing this, there is potential to lessen demand on groundwater during wet and normal hydrologic 

years and reserve groundwater for when surface water is critically short in supply.  Although this may 

have a higher up-front cost to the water users, it will help ensure long-term sustainability of the 

groundwater supplies.  The committee recommends continuing to investigate the ways in which all the 

available supplies can be utilized in an efficient manner.  This includes a vast amount of outreach and 

coordination with both districts and landowners, which is also included in the outreach section. 

Many of these tasks include coordination and cooperation with other agencies, water districts, and 

water managers.  This could include inter-district transfers locally within the basin, potential transfer 

from a district to local groundwater-dependent landowners outside of the district, possible expansion of 

a current water district, or formation of a new district. 

A list of possible water sources should be developed.  It could include Orland-Unit Water Users, Orland-

Artois Water District, Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District, regional or out-of-area suppliers, and others.  

Types of water must also be considered such as Central Valley Project contract water, base supplies, 

winter water, etc.  Obstacles should be researched and noted as well.  This could include water 

availability, infrastructure capacity, legal and political hurdles including state-wide actions, 

environmental interests, cost, district policies, timing, as well as others.  A list of water uses (irrigation, 

domestic, recharge, etc.) should accompany these items as well.  A report detailing these items is 

recommended. 



  

4 

One example of these types of surface water use and recharge activities was the Glenn County 

Groundwater Reliability and Recharge Pilot Project.  Developed as a response to public concern, the 

County applied for and obtained a grant to investigate the opportunity for in-lieu recharge in the 

groundwater dependent area in the Capay region in North-eastern Glenn County.  This study 

investigated the potential to purchase surface water to irrigate the area’s crops leaving the groundwater 

available for years in which the surface water was not available.  This would create a more reliable water 

system that could use both surface water and groundwater as needed.  The end result indicated that it 

is not currently feasible to move forward with the project due to cost, but now there is a plan that can 

be built upon in the future if some hurdles are minimized or removed to bring the cost down.  It also 

provided an excellent opportunity for outreach in that area.   

Coordination, Outreach, and Education 
It is essential for water management throughout the County to include a robust coordination, outreach, 

and education program.  Partnerships need to be developed and maintained for the ultimate good of 

the citizens in this County.  These partnerships should be considered a long-term investment in the 

resources as the partnerships created should be maintained indefinitely.  It is recommended that a 

coordination, outreach, and education program be formulated and implemented. 

A list of potential partners should be developed including state agencies, local agencies, regional 

partners, and potentially other counties with similar resources and challenges.  Examples are the Glenn 

County Farm Bureau, the Cities of Willows and Orland, local and regional water districts, managers, and 

users, the general public, the Glenn County Resource Conservation District, neighboring counties, the 

University of California and other academia, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), the U.S. 

Bureau of Reclamation, the USDA’s Natural Resource Conservation Service, and others.  This could 

provide for increased coordination in a multi-faceted approach to locally managing our precious water 

resources.  The knowledge base and understanding between the groups would grow and also provide an 

increased level of outreach. 

In addition to creating a list of partners, it should be considered fundamental to provide more 

information and ask for increased participation from our partners.  This would also include more 

informational reports given by the WAC to groups such as the Glenn County Board of Supervisors, local 

City Councils, Farm Bureau, and other interested groups.  It would also include creating more outreach 

materials in the form of articles in existing newsletters, such as Farm Bureau newsletters, and local 

newspapers.  Additionally, the WAC website should also be updated on a regular basis.  Examples of 

some topics could include efficiency versus conservation, encouraging surface water use to the extent 

possible in order to reserve groundwater use in areas with surface water availability for times in which 

surface water is not available, and the WAC and its role and the public’s ability to participate. 

Some additional areas of coordination include working with the University of California to develop 

potential studies that would benefit the management of water resources in the County.  An example of 

a potential study is discussed previously under the Cost Study Analysis section. 



  

5 

Outreach to the groundwater-dependent, private pumper areas should include information regarding 

protection of the groundwater, coordination throughout the area and the County, potential district 

formation or other formal organization, the idea of a water users’ cooperative in which there could be a 

voluntary cooperative pumping schedule to minimize the interference from one well to another, and 

other ideas as they become relevant. 

It may become necessary to coordinate with California’s Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) regarding 

“time of use” incentives and the unintended consequences it has on other natural resources.  Due to 

people generally being conscious of spending, they tend to pump their water when the rates are less 

expensive.  Because everyone tends to pump at the same time, it seems to create a regional cone of 

depression causing some wells to operate inefficiently or cause them to dewater for a period of time.  It 

also increases pumping costs since the water table is lowered at those times.  Perhaps coordinating with 

the CPUC would lessen the impacts of the “time of use” issues. 

Mapping  
This section will address the importance of creating resource mapping.  It is essential to have the ability 

to manage the County, area by area, depending on the particular needs of that area recognizing that 

each is unique.  One task the committee completed was a draft map of the County indicating areas that 

have reached historic lows in groundwater levels.  It is the recommendation of this committee that 

mapping of wells and associated data continue and expand.  The following will summarize the efforts 

that have taken place so far. 

Data in reference to groundwater levels has been collected from both private and dedicated monitoring 

wells located within Glenn County, in some cases dating as far back as the 1920’s. The lowest levels in 

these wells were most frequently associated with measurements from the 1976-77 monitoring period, 

which coincided with one of the more severe droughts in California’s history. In the years following the 

76-77 drought, groundwater levels often approached these historic lows but rarely fell below them. 

However, recent (2012-13) data indicate levels in many wells have declined below those historic 

thresholds and are now at the lowest levels observed since monitoring began.  It is important to note 

that the period of record for each well is different and not all wells include the previous drought years.  

Some of the newer monitoring wells may have less than ten years of data. 

Although these declining water levels have been observed to some extent throughout the county, the 

effect seems to be somewhat regionalized, with the highest density of low-level wells concentrated in 

the Orland and Artois areas. This clustering of low-level wells has led to the region being recognized as 

an “area of concern” that will be of particular interest for monitoring, and potential efficiency and 

management strategies. To more fully assess the extent and severity of the issue, a preliminary review 

of available data concerning the area was conducted. 

The area, as defined for the preliminary review, contains most of the area south of Orland and west of 

Road M, extending as far west as Road B, as far north as Wyo Road, and as far south as Road 48, with its 

southeastern portion between Roads 27 and 45 extending as far east as Road T (a map is included in the 



  

6 

attachments). These borders are not presented as conclusive, but are intended to encompass most of 

the affected area based on the initial review of the available well data. The County’s well database is a 

combined effort of the Department of Water Resources (DWR) well completion reports and County well 

drilling permit information.  The database shows over 1000 total wells in the area, mostly domestic or 

irrigation wells, and the most common depth being 100-200 feet.  

Readily available monitoring data obtained through DWR’s California Statewide Groundwater Elevation 

Monitoring (CASGEM) is available for 100 wells, and of those 100, 21 still show their lowest levels as 

occurring in 1977, while 21 had an all-time low water surface elevation level in 2013, and an additional 

15 wells reached their lowest point in 2009-2012. Therefore, one out of every five monitored wells in 

the area was at its lowest-ever recorded level in 2013, and one out of every three wells monitored in the 

area was at its lowest-ever recorded level between 2009 and 2013. Decade-by-decade comparisons 

using this data are problematic due to inconsistencies in monitoring records, depth, well design and 

timing. The data suggests that the area identified is suffering from a regional depression in groundwater 

levels. 

This scenario is not unexpected given the information provided by large-scale groundwater monitoring 

programs already underway within the state. Given the increased demand in the area, a general decline 

in groundwater levels in the absence of precipitation has been anticipated. However, area-specific 

information detailing the effects of the current water shortage on a regional or even individual level will 

identify the areas of greatest concern, and will be useful in developing and promoting local management 

strategies. It is the recommendation of this committee to produce a more thorough summary of 

available data and incorporate that information into a comprehensive and ongoing discussion of water 

resources in the county. 

Basin Management Objectives 
This section discusses the Basin Management Objectives (BMOs) set forth in Glenn County Ordinance 

1237 adopted in 2012, which replaces Ordinance 1115 adopted in 2000.  This ordinance is the Glenn 

County Groundwater Management Plan and stands as the backbone to managing our groundwater.  It is 

essential to continually review and update the plan as new information becomes available and new or 

unusual situations arise. 

It is the recommendation of this committee that the WAC direct the TAC to review the current BMOs 

and update if necessary.  It will be important for these levels to accurately represent the wells and 

conditions in the area to best manage the groundwater.   

New ways to view water management may become necessary to keep the aquifers of Glenn County 

healthy and sustainable.  Some ideas to further investigate while reviewing the BMOs could be: 

a. Are the current BMO groundwater levels set at the appropriate levels? 

b. How do we distinguish different aquifer zones (shallow, intermediate, deep)? 

c. Do we need BMO zones? 



  

7 

d. Should the BMOs be based on the current political boundaries or is it time to manage 

the groundwater more cooperatively with neighboring entities and “blur” the BMO lines 

to better reflect the conditions of the aquifer in that region? 

e. Are the wells selected for BMOs representative of the area?  Do they provide useful 

data?  

f. Should only dedicated monitoring wells be used rather than including irrigation and 

domestic wells? 

g. Consider using the cumulative frequency curve and well data to analyze the level of risk 

associated with BMO levels. 

County Governance Options 
The County has many potential opportunities to help ensure long-term sustainability of groundwater, 

the encouragement of using groundwater and surface water most efficiently, and has the ability to 

reach out broadly to the public and other entities.  This committee chose to look at many potential 

government actions that can be taken if it becomes necessary.  It is the committee’s desire that these 

ideas be thoroughly vetted at the WAC and the Board of Supervisors as well as through outreach to 

others while being more thoroughly developed. 

County Efforts in Other Regions  

San Luis Obispo County is currently dealing with severely declining groundwater levels in the Paso 

Robles Groundwater basin.  A summary of the challenges and the actions occurring in that county were 

presented to the committee.  It is this committee’s recommendation that the actions occurring in other 

counties be considered and evaluated informally while evaluating Glenn County’s position on 

groundwater management.  

San Luis Obispo’s management strategy for the Paso Robles groundwater basin presents an interesting 

case study for other primarily agricultural counties contemplating emergency water conservation 

measures. The basin is an 800 square mile area in San Luis Obispo County, which provides the sole 

source of water for a significant portion of the county’s residents and an estimated 40% of its 

agricultural production.  Monitoring data, modeling studies, and numerous reports of dry wells in the 

area all indicate that the basin is being drawn down beyond its ability to recharge. Faced with the 

prospect of a continually diminishing groundwater supply and no other major water source, the county 

was compelled to initiate a number of aggressive conservation and management strategies. 

A Blue Ribbon Steering Committee, consisting of municipal water companies and governmental agencies 

along with several public organizations and landowner groups, was formed in 2011 to develop and 

implement the county’s basin management plan. As part of the development process, the committee 

collected and reviewed a number of proposed solutions, ranging from immediate emergency measures 

to long-term solutions, determining the best submissions by means of a weighted point system. The 

committee released a list of its top ranked solutions in August 2013 (see attachment). 



  

8 

The county also adopted an urgency ordinance in August 2013. The ordinance is intended to minimize 

additional water use from the basin by prohibiting new or expanded crop production or the conversion 

of dry farmland into irrigated crop production, requiring all new wells to be metered, and requiring new 

development to be water neutral (via offset clearances issued by the department of planning). This 

ordinance provides for the immediate implementation of some of the adopted solutions, while others 

(such as the creation of a water district) are being phased in incrementally, with a large emphasis on 

education, outreach, and involvement of all affected parties. 

While the effectiveness of these management efforts will not be apparent for some time, the process 

itself may be informative for other counties anticipating similar water issues. In the absence of existing 

emergency measures, outreach efforts and organizational structures, counties may find themselves 

inadequately prepared for severe water shortages. But pre-emptive discussion of such strategies, 

referencing the ones established in other areas but modified to reflect local needs, may minimize the 

damages if such shortages were to occur locally, and allow water use apportionment to occur 

cooperatively though defined parameters rather than through litigation. 

Glenn County Options 

While considering actions being taken in other regions, it is imperative that Glenn County actively 

engage in managing the resources that exist within our County.  This is a cooperative effort between 

other water managers, such as water districts and municipalities, as well as private well owners.  It is 

important that all involved are aware of the value of our resources and do what we can to protect them.  

While some of these ideas will not be popular and will be controversial, to benefit the citizens of this 

County, an open discussion should ensue.  The ideas presented in this section must be further 

developed and vetted through the WAC, the Glenn County Board of Supervisors, and the public.   

It is the intent of this committee to present a wide variety of potential ideas and solutions to the issues 

of declining groundwater levels.  Not all may be feasible in the short-term, but should be considered to 

more fully discuss the options.  Generally these options include changes to the County Ordinance 

governing water management, changes in well permitting, updating the water element in the Glenn 

County’s General Plan, and addition of fees for management, coordination, and programs, or programs 

that could potentially be implemented.  In reality, it should be a combination of the above listed factors 

to most effectively manage the resource. 

The current County ordinance or a separate ordinance could be developed to include additional 

management strategies and clarify and update the adaptive management procedures.  The updated 

ordinance could also include “emergency measures” similar to those used in San Luis Obispo County.  It 

may become essential to stop using additional groundwater resources until some potential solutions can 

be implemented.  This could potentially include a moratorium on new wells drilled with specific 

exemptions. 

In conjunction with potential ordinance actions, well drilling permits issued by the Glenn County 

Environmental Health Department should be updated to include more information and potentially more 

requirements.  Additional information or requirements that should be collected through permitting 



  

9 

could include pumping test data, water quality testing, including testing for saline water intrusion, 

whether the well is a replacement well or new, and potential additional requirements if drilling is 

occurring in an area of concern or a BMO area that is in a Stage Alert status.  The permits should also 

include an updated mapping interface which builds upon the current mapping that the County has 

already developed.  This would provide for more easily collected and accurate data.   

Additional possible revisions in an updated well drilling permit in areas of concern could include such 

things as requiring meters on new wells, with data being submitted to the County, higher fees for 

monitoring, studying, and oversight of areas with groundwater decline and sustainability of water 

throughout the County, restrictions on well locations (well spacing), requiring mitigation plans, and/or 

additional monitoring requirements.  It is also suggested to consider types of use such as domestic wells 

versus production wells when determining potential requirements for each. 

In addition to the updated ordinance and well permitting requirements, it would be beneficial to update 

the water element in Glenn County’s General Plan.  This would allow for greater coordination between 

land use decisions and water resource decisions, which is essential to Glenn County’s economy.  A 

stronger water element coupled with the additional changes mentioned would allow for a more robust 

analysis of water resources and developing responsibly while protecting the current users of 

groundwater.  

Generating local revenues to support local water resource management is a concern.  Financial 

resources are necessary to support real-time monitoring and reporting of water resource conditions.  

Currently, Glenn County is under-funded to support the level of water resource management that is in 

the interest of the county as a whole.  Potential fees for water management should be considered.  It is 

crucial to the well-being of this County to provide funding to support the management of water county-

wide.  Fees could potentially include a county-wide water assessment for Water Protection per parcel, 

fees based on public benefit in areas of concern, revisit the water transfer fees in the Export Water 

Transfer Guidelines, in addition to well drilling permit fees.  These ideas would need to be vetted more 

fully to determine the potential for these or other fee types to be implemented. 

Monies collected through these venues should be used to fund a water coordinating department whose 

responsibilities would include data collection and management, implementation of the Groundwater 

Management Plan, and coordination of water programs.  Some of these programs are state mandated, 

while others may be voluntary.    

One potential program that could be implemented include the development of a mapping based Local 

Groundwater Users Program (Cooperative) for pumpers to voluntarily coordinate their pumping with 

others in the area.  Another might be to create a program to help water users control and coordinate 

their costs (energy costs) associated with water use, for both surface water and groundwater.  This 

could include projects to help fund alternative energy such as solar projects, or surface water filtration 

projects for micro and drip irrigation.   Another potential program could be outreach and organizational 

efforts in groundwater dependent areas.  This could initiate either informal or formal organization, such 



  

10 

as a district, by the group.  This would give groundwater users a collective voice for their region allowing 

for more local control.   

Summary 
It is the hope of this committee that the ideas discussed in this report be a beginning point for an open 

discussion and potential updating of the management of water within Glenn County, especially in the 

western area exhibiting signs of groundwater decline.  This report summarized several general 

categories and will be used to create an “Action List” through the listed recommendations.  Many of the 

ideas must be further developed and will need to be prioritized.  Most have restrictions on 

implementation due to funding constraints.  The committee introduced the draft report to the Water 

Advisory Committee on February 11, 2014, and the Technical Advisory Committee on April 23, 2014.  It 

is the intent of this committee to present a final draft of this report to the Water Advisory Committee at 

the May 6, 2014 special meeting for additional discussion and potential approval. 

 







Approved by WAC 5/6/14 
Adopted by Board of Supervisors 5/20/14 

Glenn County Water Advisory Committee-Ad hoc Committee 
Groundwater Level Declines in Western Glenn County 

Action List 

"It is the desire of the people of Glenn County that sufficient and affordable water of good quality be 

available on a sustainable basis to meet the needs of agricultural, industrial, recreational, 

environmental, residential and municipal users within the county, both now and in the future."—Goal 

of the Glenn County Water Advisory Committee 

Modeling/Water Budget (foundational) 
 Pursue the use of groundwater and surface water modeling for Glenn County (possibly include 

Tehama and/or Colusa Counties).   

 Research and investigate the types of models available 

 Research the extent of field calibration that has already been completed 

 Research the appropriateness of their application to Glenn County 

 Determine the criteria to be used 

 Develop questions the model should seek to answer (e.g. best places for recharge, 

water flow, sustainability at current use).   

 Develop county-wide water budget 

 Couple modeling with other types of field monitoring  

 Seek funding  

 Summary report  

Cost Study Analysis (moderate) 
 Further improve the concept of this study 

 Develop a plan to implement the study   

 Evaluate funding options   

 Engage statewide specialists from University of California in the development and execution of 

this study with Allan Fulton, TAC representative for the UC Cooperative Extension, being the 

lead for the TAC.   

 Research previous cost studies 

 Summary report 

Recharge Activities (critical) 
 Continued investigation of potential recharge activities 

  In-lieu recharge  

 Active recharge  



  

 Detention basins   

 Develop summary report of previous local studies   

 Research funding opportunities for project implementation 

 Evaluate new potential studies and sites 

 Research funding    

 Coordinate with water districts and water users  

 Identify naturally occurring groundwater recharge areas in the County 

 Take steps to actively protect them from future threats 

 Summary report 

Surface Water Use (critical) 
 Continuing to investigate ways in which all available surface water supplies can be utilized in the 

region efficiently   

 Outreach, coordination, cooperation 

 Water districts, other agencies, water managers, landowners 

 Examples: Inter-district transfers locally within the basin, potential transfer 

from a district to local groundwater-dependent landowners outside of the 

district, possible expansion of a current water district, or formation of a new 

district. 

 Develop a list of possible water sources   

 Consider types of water such as Central Valley Project contract water, base supplies, winter 

water, etc.   

 Research and note potential obstacles including water availability, infrastructure capacity, legal 

and political hurdles including state-wide actions, environmental interests, cost, district policies, 

timing, as well as others.   

 Develop a list of water uses (irrigation, domestic, recharge, etc.)  

 Summary report  

Coordination, Outreach, and Education (foundational) 
 Formulate and implement a robust coordination, outreach, and education program 

 Develop a list of potential partners  

 Provide more information and ask for increased participation from our partners.   

 Provide informational reports   

  Create outreach materials   

 Update the WAC website   

 Specific coordination:  University of California - develop potential studies that would benefit the 

management of water resources in the County.   

 Specific outreach:  Groundwater-dependent, private pumper areas - include information 

regarding protection of the groundwater, coordination throughout the area and the County, 



  

potential district formation or other formal organization, the idea of a water users’ cooperative 

in which there could be a voluntary cooperative pumping schedule to minimize the interference 

from one well to another, and other ideas as they become relevant. 

 Specific coordination:  California’s Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) - “time of use” incentives 

and the unintended consequences it has on other natural resources.  

Mapping (critical) 
 Prepare draft map of the County indicating areas that have reached historic lows in 

groundwater levels.  (Complete) 

 Continue, expand mapping of wells and associated data 

 Location 

 Depth, screening 

 Drill date 

 Capacity 

 Construction details 

 Produce summary of available well data 

Basin Management Objectives (foundational) 
 Request the WAC direct the TAC to review and update the current BMOs   

 Ideas to further investigate while reviewing the BMOs could be: 

a. Are the current BMO groundwater levels set at the appropriate levels? 

b. How do we distinguish different aquifer zones (shallow, intermediate, deep)? 

c. Do we need BMO zones? 

d. Should the BMOs be based on the current political boundaries or is it time to manage 

the groundwater more cooperatively with neighboring entities and “blur” the BMO lines 

to better reflect the conditions of the aquifer in that region? 

e. Are the wells selected for BMOs representative of the area?  Do they provide useful 

data?  

f. Should only dedicated monitoring wells be used rather than including irrigation and 

domestic wells? 

g. Consider using the cumulative frequency curve and well data to analyze the level of risk 

associated with BMO levels. 

County Governance Options (foundational to moderate) 
County Efforts in Other Regions 

 Evaluate and consider actions occurring in other counties  

 San Luis Obispo County summary (Initial complete, ongoing) 

 Blue Ribbon Steering Committee 



  

  Urgency ordinance adopted - August 2013 

 Stanislaus County 

Glenn County Options 

 Actively engage, further develop and vet through the WAC, the Glenn County Board of 

Supervisors, and the public.   

 Develop options to consider changes to the County Ordinance governing water management 

 Current ordinance 

 New ordinance 

 emergency measures 

 moratorium on new wells 

 specific exemptions  

 Develop options to consider changes in well permitting  

 update well drilling/abandonment permit form 

 additional requirements for all new well permits 

 additional requirements for wells in areas of concern 

 mapping interface 

 fee update (in areas of concern) 

 restrictions on location, size, or screening 

 Develop options to consider update of water element in Glenn County General Plan 

 Develop options for addition of fees for management, coordination, and programs  

 county-wide assessment for Water Protection per parcel 

 Public benefit assessment  

 Water transfer fees in Export Water Transfer Guidelines 

 Well drilling permit fees 

 Develop programs that could potentially be implemented   

 Development of a mapping based Local Groundwater Users Program (Cooperative) for 

pumpers to voluntarily coordinate their pumping with others in the area.   

 Development of a program to help water users control and coordinate their costs 

(energy costs) associated with water use, for both surface water and groundwater such 

as projects to help fund alternative energy such as solar projects, or surface water 

filtration projects for micro and drip irrigation.    

 Develop outreach and organizational efforts in groundwater dependent areas.  This 

could initiate either informal or formal organization, such as a district, by the group.  



BMO Compliance 
Spring 2016 

lhunter
Text Box
Item 2.a



Well 
Number 

Map 
Number 

Well use 
type 

Well 
Depth 

Ground 
Surface 
Elevatio
n 

Spring 
2016 
Water 
Surface 
Elevatio
n (feet 
above 
sea 
level) 

Spring 
2016 
Depth 
To 
Ground
water 
(feet 
below 
ground 
surface) 

BMO 
stage 
alert 
level 

22N03W
17E001
M 

1 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
21F002
M 

2 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
30C001
M 

3 Stage 3 

22N03W
34A001
M 

4 Stage 3 

22N03W
12Q003
M 

4 Stage 2 

22N02W
31C001
M 

5 Stage 2 

21N03W
12C002
M 

6 Stage 3 

22N02W
20Q001
M 

7 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N02W
21D001
M 

8 No 
Stage 
Alert 



Well 
Number 

Map 
Number 

Well use 
type 

Well 
Depth 

Ground 
Surface 
Elevatio
n 

Spring 
2016 
Water 
Surface 
Elevatio
n (feet 
above 
sea 
level) 

Spring 
2016 
Depth 
To 
Ground
water 
(feet 
below 
ground 
surface) 

BMO 
stage 
alert 
level 

22N03W
17E001
M 

1 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
21F002
M 

2 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
30C001
M 

3 Stage 3 

22N03W
34A001
M 

4 Stage 3 

22N03W
12Q003
M 

4 Stage 2 

22N02W
31C001
M 

5 Stage 2 

21N03W
12C002
M 

6 Stage 3 

22N02W
20Q001
M 

7 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N02W
21D001
M 

8 No 
Stage 
Alert 



Well 
Number 

Map 
Number 

Well use 
type 

Well 
Depth 

Ground 
Surface 
Elevatio
n 

Spring 
2016 
Water 
Surface 
Elevatio
n (feet 
above 
sea 
level) 

Spring 
2016 
Depth 
To 
Ground
water 
(feet 
below 
ground 
surface) 

BMO 
stage 
alert 
level 

22N03W
17E001
M 

1 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
21F002
M 

2 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
30C001
M 

3 Stage 3 

22N03W
34A001
M 

4 Stage 3 

22N03W
12Q003
M 

4 Stage 2 

22N02W
31C001
M 

5 Stage 2 

21N03W
12C002
M 

6 Stage 3 

22N02W
20Q001
M 

7 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N02W
21D001
M 

8 No 
Stage 
Alert 



Well 
Number 

Map 
Number 

Well use 
type 

Well 
Depth 

Ground 
Surface 
Elevatio
n 

Spring 
2016 
Water 
Surface 
Elevatio
n (feet 
above 
sea 
level) 

Spring 
2016 
Depth 
To 
Ground
water 
(feet 
below 
ground 
surface) 

BMO 
stage 
alert 
level 

22N03W
17E001
M 

1 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
21F002
M 

2 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
30C001
M 

3 Stage 3 

22N03W
34A001
M 

4 Stage 3 

22N03W
12Q003
M 

4 Stage 2 

22N02W
31C001
M 

5 Stage 2 

21N03W
12C002
M 

6 Stage 3 

22N02W
20Q001
M 

7 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N02W
21D001
M 

8 No 
Stage 
Alert 



Well 
Number 

Map 
Number 

Well use 
type 

Well 
Depth 

Ground 
Surface 
Elevatio
n 

Spring 
2016 
Water 
Surface 
Elevatio
n (feet 
above 
sea 
level) 

Spring 
2016 
Depth 
To 
Ground
water 
(feet 
below 
ground 
surface) 

BMO 
stage 
alert 
level 

22N03W
17E001
M 

1 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
21F002
M 

2 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N03W
30C001
M 

3 Stage 3 

22N03W
34A001
M 

4 Stage 3 

22N03W
12Q003
M 

4 Stage 2 

22N02W
31C001
M 

5 Stage 2 

21N03W
12C002
M 

6 Stage 3 

22N02W
20Q001
M 

7 No 
Stage 
Alert 

22N02W
21D001
M 

8 No 
Stage 
Alert 



1 

2 

3 

5 

4 6 

8 

9 

7 



22N03W30C001M 
Map #3 



22N03W34A001M 
Map #4 



22N03W12Q003M 
Map #5 



22N02W21D001M 
Map #9 





Well Number Map Number Well use type Well Depth (feet) Perforations (feet)

Ground Surface 

Elevation

Spring 2016 Water 

Surface Elevation (feet 

above sea level)

Spring 2016 Depth To 

Groundwater (feet 

below ground surface) BMO stage alert level

22N03W17E001M 1 Residential 72 58-60 285.49 271.49 14 No Stage Alert

22N03W21F002M 2 Residential 145 89-90, 120-125, 130-135 264.47 241.07 23.4 No Stage Alert

22N03W30C001M 3 Residential 176 160-172 287.49 156.47 131.02 Stage 3

22N03W34A001M 4 Residential 96 76-94 235.45 213.25 22.2 Stage 3

22N03W12Q003M 5 Residential 124 112-123 232.44 193.64 38.8 Stage 2

22N02W31C001M 6 Residential 144 85-92, 136-141 205.43 173.28 32.15 Stage 2

21N03W12C002M 7 Irrigation 155 204.44 158.44 46 Stage 3

22N02W20Q001M 8 Residential 60 50-59 201.43 185.7 15.73 No Stage Alert

22N02W21D001M 9 Irrigation 90 200.42 173.72 26.7 No Stage Alert

Draft information to accompany BMO Compliance Map for TAC June 27, 2016

lhunter
Text Box
Item 2.a



 

 

Potential Stage Alert Actions—DRAFT for Discussion--  June 27, 2016 

No Stage Alert: 

 Continue monitoring 

 Evaluate for significant changes/trends 

Stage 1 Alert: 

 Continue activities under “no stage alert” 

 Public outreach 

o Press release with groundwater level information 

o Post information to the website 

 TAC investigate and report on possible causes and determine if widespread or localized.  The 

evaluation should include: 

o Water use analysis 

o Land use analysis 

o Precipitation and climate evaluation 

o Water budget updates 

o Surrounding groundwater conditions 

o Undesirable results analysis 

If the above items are not appropriate, or the TAC is unable to prepare the analysis, an 

explanation should be included in the report. 

 

 TAC outline a Stage 2 action plan for implementation if conditions do not improve (to be 

completed prior to the next BMO compliance evaluation).  The action plan should include the 

following: 

o Increased public outreach 

o Increased monitoring locations and frequency 

o Well permitting plan for stage 2 areas (could include required monitoring access 

including access port, monitoring requirements, limiting to one active well per legal 

parcel, well spacing-vertical/horizontal, casing/construction/design restrictions) 

o Well registration for all wells (could include location, acreage served, crop, anticipated 

amount to be used, general pumping schedule) 

o No export of groundwater or groundwater substitution outside Glenn County 

o Initial research in potential recharge program(s) including location, type, and funding for 

the program 

If the above items are not appropriate, an explanation should be included in the action plan.  

Stage 2 Alert: 

 Continue activities under “no stage alert” 

 Public outreach 

lhunter
Text Box
Item 2.b



 

 

o Press release with water level information 

o Post information to the website 

 Review and provide any updates to investigation to determine possible causes and 

determination if widespread or localized. 

 Implement Stage 2 action plan. 

 TAC outline a Stage 3 adaptive management action plan for implementation if conditions 

worsen.  The action plan should include the following: 

o Development of recharge program(s) including financial planning 

o Moratorium on new wells with exemptions 

o Well permitting plan for exempted wells in stage 3 areas 

o Meters on wells producing more than 2 AF or used for non-residential purposes 

o Mandatory reporting of water use  

o Revised or reduced pumping schedules 

o Limit amount of water use per acre 

o Well registration continues with additional information as necessary 

If the above items are not appropriate, an explanation should be included in the action plan.  

Stage 3 Alert: 

 Continue activities under “no stage alert” 

 Public outreach 

o Press release with water level information 

o Post information to the website 

o Hold informational public meetings 

 Review and provide any updates to investigation to determine possible causes and 

determination if widespread or localized. 

 Implement Stage 3 adaptive management action plan including voluntary and mandatory 

actions contained within the plan. 

 TAC outline an emergency action plan for implementation if conditions worsen.  The action plan 

should include the following: 

o Identify avenues for locating water sources for public needs 

o Identify financial resources to address emergency needs for domestic and livestock 

water shortages 

If the above items are not appropriate, an explanation should be included in the action plan.  

 



 

 
Glenn County Environmental Health Department 

247 N. Villa Avenue, Willows, CA 95988 
Tel: 530-934-6102       Fax: 530-934-6103 

Well Permit Application 
               Well Permit # 

 
 
 

  

Applicant Information: 

 
Owners Name:           Phone #:    
 
Mailing Address:           Fax #:     
 
Email Address:              
 
Well Contractor:           Phone #:    
 
Well Contractor Email:          Fax #:     
 
Well Contractor CA C-57 License #       

Assessor’s Parcel Number:       Well GPS Coordinates:      
 

Well Longitude:        Well Latitude:       
 
Property Address/Location:             

(Provide Nearest Cross Road) 

 

Property & Well Location: 

Type of Work: 

Domestic          Industrial           Agricultural           Monitoring           Public           Soil Boring       # (       )  
Cathodic Protection          Other         
 
 

 
 

New Well                Replacement Well                Repair/Deepen                Test Hole                Destruction    

Well Type: 

Distance From Well: Septic Tank (ft.):          Leachfield (ft.):           Animal Enclosure (ft.):   

Pump Information: Pump Contractor:        Phone #:    
 
License Number:     Pump Type:     Horsepower:   

Construction Detail Proposed: 

Well Depth (ft):    Conductor Material:   
 
Borehole Dia. (in):    Conductor Dia. (in):   
 
Casing Depth (ft):    Conductor Depth (ft):   
 
Casing Dia. (in):    Seal Depth (ft):    
 
Casing Material:    Gravel Pack:     Yes          No                 
 
Casing Gauge:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Construction Detail Actual: 

Well Depth (ft):    Conductor Material:   
 
Borehole Dia. (in):    Conductor Dia. (in):   
 
Casing Depth (ft):    Conductor Depth (ft):   
 
Casing Dia. (in):    Seal Depth (ft):    
 
Casing Material:    Gravel Pack:     Yes          No                 
 
Casing Gauge:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Destruction Detail: 

Sealing Material: 

Well Depth (ft):    Well Diameter (in):    Depth to Water (ft):   

Neat Cement  10.3 Sack, Sand Cement    Concrete   
 
Bentonite:  Type:     Product Name:     



 

Plot Plan 
 
Indicate all distances in feet. Provide the names of streets or roads nearest to the property. Provide dimensions of the 
property, water surface features and all existing and proposed structures. Provide locations of existing and proposed 
onsite wastewater treatment systems, including expansion and repair areas, within 300 feet of the new well. Provide 
locations of all other wells within 300 feet of the new well. Location information shall include all adjacent parcels, if 
within the setbacks. 
 
A labelled satellite image or aerial photo (ex. Google earth) may be submitted in place of a plot plan drawing and would 
be preferred.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N 

 



 

Permit Application Conditions of Approval 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I certify that I have read this application and the information described herein is correct. I agree to comply with all State and County 
laws, standards, ordinances, regulations and conditions related to this well, and hereby agree to obtain all required inspections of 
this well. I agree to contact the Environmental Health Department at least 2-business days prior to the desired inspection time(s). I 
agree to submit a “Well Completion Report” (if required) to the Environmental Health Department, within 60 days of well seal 
completion.  
 
I understand that this well may become subject to further requirements and/or restrictions in order to meet groundwater 
management and/or sustainability goals, including, but not limited to, metering, extraction reporting, required monitoring, reduced 
pumping, or revised scheduling.  I certify that I will work cooperatively with County Officials and hereby authorize County Officials to 
enter this property, with prior notification, in order to implement groundwater management and/or sustainability goals. 
 
I understand every permit expires one year after issuance. I further understand that if the well cannot be completed within one year 
I may apply for an additional one year extension, before the permit expires and with Environmental Health Department approval.  
 

               
  Signature of Owner        Date 
 
               
         Signature of Well Contractor       Date 
 

 

Date:        Application Approval:          
        REHS Signature 
 
Date:        Conductor Seal Approval:          
        REHS Signature 
 

Date:        Annular Seal Approval:          
        REHS Signature 
 

Date:        Well Log Received:           
        REHS Signature 
 

Date:        Final Approval:           
        REHS Signature 
 

Agreement and Signature of Owner and Well Contractor: 

Official Use Only 

 
Date:     Fee Paid:     Receipt #:     Rec’d by:   






	2016Jul12WAC_AgendaFinal
	WAC_Minutes2016May10Draft
	WAC_Minutes2016May24Draft
	LetterToBOS_DraftFromTACtoWAC_2016Jul12meetingFinalDraft
	LetterToBOS_Attachement_DraftSummary_ForWAC2016Jul12
	Glenn-Co-Memorandum
	AdHocRecommendationsReportFinal2014May20
	AdHocRecommendationsActionListFinal2014May20
	BMO_Compliance_TAC2016Jun27_DraftForWAC
	BMO_Wells_Northwest_Comparison_2016Spring
	StageAlertActionsDRAFT2016July12
	LetterToWAC_FromLAFCO_GW_DistrictFormation_Dated2016Jul11



